
UNITED . N'ATIONS --
. 1 . . 

GENERAL 
ECONOM.IC 
AND 

· E/CN.6/SR.l09 
21 A\lgust 1952 

SOCIAL COUNCIL· ~ 
Original: ENGLISH and 

FRENCH 

CONTENTS; . 

Dual Distribution 

COMMISSION CN THE STATUS OF WOMEN 

Sixth Session 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE ONE HUNDRED AND NINTH MEETING 

held at the Palais des Nation., Geneva, 
on Friday, 28 March 1~2, at 10.30 a.m. 

EdUoatiorlal ·oppo~unities for women (item 1 of the agenda) 
(continued): 

(a) Study· of the .pr~gress repori prepared by uNEscO in 
oollaboMtion with the Seoretary-Geneital ot the 
United Nations (E/ON.o/l91) (continued). 



, E/CN.6/SR.l09 
'page 2 

Present: 

Chairman: 1-frs. LEFAUCHEUX (France) 

1-tembers: 

Miss WTZ 

Mrs. NYBIN 
Mrs. NOVIKOVA 

Mrs. FIGUEROA 

Uiss TSZNG 

Miss MANAS 

Mrs. de L'OFFICIAL 
Mrs. FIROUZ 

Mrs. TABET 

lfis s PZLETIZR 

Mrs. ROSS 

Begutn Fida HASSAN 

Miss KALINO\ISKA 

Mrs. POPOVA 

Hiss SUTHE.il.LA.ND 

1-!rs. GOLDMA~J 

Brazil 

Burma 

Byelorussian Soviet · 
Socialist Republic 

Chile 

China 

Cuba 

Dominican Republic 

Iran 

Lebanon 

Netherlands 

New Zealand 

Pakistan 

Poland 

Union·of Soviet Socialist 
Republics . 

United Kingdom 

United States of America 

Representatives of sP2cialized agencies: 

International Labour Organisation · 

United Nations Educational , 
Scientific and Cultural 
Organization 

Miss FAIRCHILD 

Miss DAS 



Representatives of non-governmental organizations: 

Category A' 

International Confederation of Free 
Trade Unions 

lvorld Federation of Trade Unions 

Categ¢ey B 

Catholic International Union for 
Social Service 

International Council of Wcimen 

International Federation of Business 
and Professional ~lomen 

lnternr.tional Federation of Friends of 
Young Women . 

. ' 

!nternntional Federation of University Wpmen 

Internationcl. League for the Rights of Han 

I~ternational Union of Catholic \loman 1 s Leagues 

Liaison Committee of 'Ho~n' s International 
Organizations 

Pax RoiUana 

Women's International League for Peace 
. and Freedom 

Uorld 1 s Y'oung ~/omen r s Christian Association 

World Union for Progressive Judaism 

Register 

Associated Country \vomen of the \'Torld 

Open Door Internat1on~ 

St. Joan's International Social and 
Political Alliance 

See retaria t: 

!1%-s. Tenison-vloods 

Ml-s •.. Grinberg- Vinaver 

' J 

E/CN .6/SR.l09 
·page 3 

Mrs. ETIENNE 

Mrs ~ CHIOSTERGI 

Mrs. SOUDAN 

Miss van EEGHEN 

Miss TOMLINSON 

Mrs. · FIECHT;m 

Mrs. FIECHTER 

Mrs. BAZR 

!-lias BAHRY 
Miss van EIDHEN 

Miss ARCHINARD 

Mrs. BAER 

Miss ROYCE 

Lady NATHAN of CHUR'l' 

Miss KI.ZYN 
Mrs. RUSSELL 

Mrs. BAER 

Hiss CHALLONER 
Miss YOUNG 

Representative or the 
Secretary-General 

Secretary to the Commission. 



E/CN.6/SR. l09 
page 4 

EDUCATIONAL OPPO:CtTUNITLB FOR -~!Oi:f:EN (item 7 of the agenda) (continued):: . 
. . 

(a) Study of the progress report prepared by UNESCO in collaboration with the 
Secret~ry-General of the United Nations (E/CN.6/191) (continued) 

. . . 
Mrs. GOLDMAN (.United Stat es of America) believed that the Co~saion 

could. achieve valuabl e results in promoting educational opportunities ~or .Women 
. . 

by pooling the experience and ideas of all its members. · The essence of the 
. . 

problem had been defined'in .the Pr~amble ' to the Char ter of the United Nations, . . 
in which the peoples of the world undertook to re-affirm faith in the dignity and 

I • • ' 

worth of the human person. A great deal ,.,.as. done in t.he United States :of America 

to teach young People about the United Nations. Students -at. t~e universities · 

sought to understand the points of view of different countries, and one 

university had, for instance, organized a model United Nations . 

At the preceding _ me~ting the representati~e of the Unit"ed Nations Educ~tional, 

Scientific and Cultural Organization (UN~CO) had given a detailed, description of 
.. . 

UNESCO's work. She (Mrs . Goldman) was able to_subscribe to the nine principal 

points drawn up by the ~'lorking Party for Planning Studies on the Acces·s of vlonen 

to Education (Annex 1 to Part 1 of the Working Party' s report, WS/ 022. 51) and 

would link her comments to them. Suggestions put forward from time to time 

· regarding a special curri~ulum for women' had met .w.ith very little s~ccess in the 

United States of America, w~ere public opinion. wns convinced that women s~ould be 

taught to think straight by means of a normnl liberal education. 

The co-educ·ational system was widely practised in her country. She had been 

particularly interested to l~a'rn fran various do~ents emanating from the Soviet 

Union that plans to apply.t~at syst em there had app~rently been abandoned. 

Although certain pu?lications described separa.~e ed~cation for .the· two sexes·~s 

incompatible with the principles -of socialist society1 the movement to abolish 

segregation· had been cold-shouldered by the authoriti es . , From the point of .view:· 

of the Politburenu, .the military value of segregation outweighed its disadvantages. 
. . 

As to the access of girls to higher education, she had ·only the ot~er day 

re9eived a. letter: from.a· negro woman who had recentlY fo~ded a .coll~ge in .Fiorida. 

The college was short ly to hold a big meeting to study methods of teaching peace 

and international understanding • . That letter provided remarkable evidence of the . . ' 

lead taken in ed~cationa.l matters by a minority group in the United States -of . . 



E/CN.6/SR.l()9. --
pa._ge ·s · · 

Am.eri.ca, · Nor was thc.t· ·a 'recent· phenomenon. -Representatives mig}:lt perhaps 

· remember : the negro . Fr.ederick n·ouglns who had, . in his c apacity as editor of a 
. . 

· newspaper at Seneca Falls,- encouraged in 1848 the leac!.ers of. the· movement ·for 

women• s 'Suffrage· 'in those ec..I'ly days; . 

· One of the niost important· points to be · considered in connexiori wi~h 

educational opportunities for women was the removal of :d.iscriminat:{on· on grounds 

·. of :political opinion • . There was no such discrimination in the United States of 

America.; I t was. highly r~prehensible that the children of par ents who opposed 

·their couhtry1 s regime should be 'dep.rived of higher ~ducation.- One ·aspect of 

educations.~ policy as practised in the s ·oviet Union .was causing ·great distress 

and 'conce.rn in her country. That was the 9ampD.ign for teaching ha~red of the 

· United States -of ~~eri~a. · Quite apart from the .evil effect of such teac~ing on 

the mind-s of children, she ·l-tondered how t.ime c~mld be found for it in the 

curricu~um, ~inca one- third of the teaching hours were ~lready devoted to 

· co~st doctrine. She was convinced that it would be impossible to- achieve . 

positive results irt securing gre.ater· educc.tiom\1 opportunfties •-for women unless 
. . . . 

it WaS admitted that -girls, just ·as ·much -as boys·, mUSt h~Ve acc·!='SS to the truth. 
. . 

·Hiss KALINO\·lSKA (Poiand) , r eferring to the · rep~rt· on vocational 

Guidance · and vocational and technical education among women (Z/CN. 6/i78), stid 

that the statement on page 31, to the effect that t~e probl~m of illiteracy. and 

an- insufficient network o£ -schools ·weighed more heavily on. women than on men, . · 

applied as much .to the ·industrialized areas -of the world as to the non- industria-. . 

lized regions. When discussing the r eport of UNESCO at its thirteenth session, the 

. ·Economic and Social Council had noted thr.t thera \'lere one billion i~literates in 

. the world, the great ~~rt of whom were women. UNESCO was carrying out studies, 

research and field investigations. She did not deny the importance of-those 

techniques, but the essenti~l prerequisite of success was · ~incerity on .the part of. 

government s and the allocation of udequr.te funds , -The Report of the· Sub-Committee 

on Education in Non-self- Governing Territories for the year 1950 (ST/TRI/SER.A/5/ 

Add. 2) clearly indicated that in those territories ·a "1ide.- discrepancy existed 

between the literacy -of· boys and girls , to the lr.tter's cost.· It was also stated 

(page 16) that budgetary considerr.tions were limiting the mass literucy campaigns. 

In the meantime the General Assembly hnd, in its resolution 22?(III) adopted in 

November, i 948, . r ecommended that Administering Authorities should intensify their 



E/CN. 6/SR. l09 
, page 6 

efforts to incre::-.se educe/donal fo.cilities, even if that me~t · increasing the . 

c.ppropriu.te budgetc.ry e.llocr..tions . It had agcin str essed the urgency of. improving 

and increasing educctional f~cilities in .Non-Self- Governing Territories in its 

resolution 324(IV), adopted the follov1ing ye;:..r. As to urr~scor s work, . at .its fifth 

session in 1950 the General Assembly had, in resolution 445(V), expres~ed ·the vie'l'l 

the.t studies alone 'Here not enough, and that the existing problems ·must be solved 
:-.:\ ~4 • •• • • • • ,; . . ..... 

in the territories themselves l.Yher e , according to the above- mentioned r eport, 

illitert-.cy ro.tes vari~d betltteen. 50 per cent and 60 per cent. It .should be noted, 

moreover, that the concept of literacy varied from the ability to rend fluently 

to the simple capacit~ of the individual to sign his or her.·mme . · · The figures for 

li~erncy in such territories as Kenyc., the Gold Coast and British Somaliland were 

star.tlinely lol-t. So vw.s the expenditure on educl'.tioh. For instance, in Tanganyika 

91 per cent of the population of 7,000,000 Africa.ns ive·re illiterate.' It was 

asserted tf'..,"l.t the shortage of schools could not be · r emedied for lack of funds ; but 

whereas the sum of two shillings a year was spent on the educttion of an African 

child, millions · of pound.s . h;d been .. cllocc.ted to the United Africa Company for the 

groundnuts scheme. In Nigeria, only between 5 end 6 per cent of indigenous · 

children·attended school. 

As to Latin America, reference had been made c.t a previous session of the 

Conmdssian to the speech ~de by the ~rinister for Zducr..tion of one of the Latin­

American pountries l-lho, describing the c.cute shortage of school ~uildings , hc.d 

said that ·only nn irresponsible demagogue ,.,ould undertcl<e ·to solve thr.t problem 

l'r.ithin a ~easonable periocii of time. 

· She had ~lrar4Y, in ' one· of her previo~s statements, described the shocking 
. . .. . . ·.. . .. . . . 

conditions the.t he.d prev<:1.iled in har own country before the second vlOrld war. 

Thc.nks to the valiv.nt efforts.' of the post- war Polish Government and of lead.ing 
' -

'"omen 1 s .orgc.nizdions, illi ter<:!.cy had been mastered in seven yecrs , 8, 600 d~ged 

schools had been repaired, end many new ones had been bui~t . The educ~tional . 

system had been r eformed , ·At the present time, 25, 000, 000 copies of text books 

\tere .published every yer.r~ That showed 1-iha.t c~uld be done , given the ~ri.11 .:md the 

necessary funds • 
. . 



E/CN.6/SR.l09 
p<).ge 7-

The Commission should not devote attentj,.on to generti studies, but should 

urge governmepts to t ake positive action to further the education of·women. · 

V~s . POPOVA (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said th~t elthough 

the quest~on of educational opportunities for women appeared regularly on the 

Commission's agenda, the letter had not yet mnde ~ny positive contribution to 

the solution· of the problem. Replies r"rom gov3riunents. on the question of equal 

educational opportunities hcd, on the whole, been inadequ~te . MoreoVer, the 

Commission had entrusted the work to UNESCO, which was drewing up extensive p:ans . . . . 
for 1952 and future years. Draft resolutions were ~dopted, questionnaires 

circulated and speeches me.de, but dat_a from offici~ sources provided . cleal" 

evidence of tbe wholly unsetisfactor,y state of affairs in respect of the education 

of women. Th~ problem could not be separated from th~.t of the general cultural 

leve~ of any country. The high3r that level, the better the education and the 

greater the_ opportunities. Educ~tion also depended on political, economic and 

social equality • . Women l'lho did not enjoy equal rights with men could not ht>.Ve 

free access ·to educational opportunity. . Indeed, that fund~~entel fact had been 

admitted by all speakers in t_he preceding discussion. 

But she would l et the facts speak for the~selves . In the United States or 

America 3,000,000 children, more than half of whom were girls, did not receive a 

full education. Onl;y -1 per cent of the feder~l budget for 1952/53 WC'.s earnW.rked 

for education, representing a sum of 75,000,000 dollars, widch was seventy times 

less thr.n ,.1a.s beitlf sperit for milik.ry purposes. In the past two years, the 

United States Fress had frequently mentioned the ~rtnilment of building for 

civilian purposes. On 24 September, 1951, the New York Times had stated that the 

number of pupils had declinec during the school-year by 250,000. There h~d been 

30 per cent fewer university students; private colleges '"ere consequently in 

financial difficulties, and had been obliged to raise their f ees to such 4n 

extent . as to lilnit severely the enrolment of students . A former rector of the 

University of Chicago had stated on 21 November, 1951, t~t education at the 



E/CN, 6/SR .109 
page_B 

present· time lW:s et a lo.~~r level than ·it had ' been 25 years ago . .Shortages 

of teachers and schools, particularly in count:ry- areas, · l'ms c:cute . · Children 

were beihg taught in cellars; in garages and oth~r highly unsuitebl~ premises , 

\>Tom en teachers were paid lm-1er SD.larie s than male teachers. 

Very'little indeed ha.d been done in the United Kingdom to repo.ir the 

d~age caused by the war. No more than 5 to 6 per cent of the· budget was 

allocated to edtic<J.tion-, and there was a shortage of schools o.nd te<J.chers . At 

the beginning of 1952 ' the ·Parents and Teachers Association had approached ·the 

' Minister of Education with a request th~t th~ sale in the United Kingdom of 
American 11 comics11 should. be prohibited. The Association claimed that such 

11 literatureu had a very bc.d influence on children, because it '"'as V8ry largely 

devoted· to war, death, racia1 . prejudice· and .evi1 generally. Such publica~ions 

\>tare always vulgar in their treatment of' womAn, but protests and resolutions 

notwithstanding, the police did not seem to think it necessa~J to· ben them. 

In Cancda, too, educational opportunities for women 1-1e re limited. , Of 

74,000 students in higher educationnl institutions, only 15,221 were women. 

In Belgium, only · 2,898 '"omen were pursuing higher studies out of a total of · 

17,471 students; and in Norway the ficures were 1,380 vior.\en out of 7,743 

students. 

It ,.,.as ·weJ.J.;.-known th::-.t in ce:r:tcin Latin- Americc.n-eoun.trie.s such .B.S. Haiti, 

Honduras and Pcru, · the illiteracy r ate -among wonen was a s high as from 50 to 

60 per cent • 

. The f act thnt so .many ' "omen were obliged to do unskilled work for 

miserable wages wc.s due to their lack o'! .opportunities for technical trnining. 



E/CN.6/SR.l09 
· page 9 · 

. In t~e S~vi~t . Pnion, ~ome~ .~njoyed perf~ct equality with men . All 
. . . . . : . . . . . . .. \' . . 

~sti~utions of .higher educat.~·on were. open. to. them, a~d ~hey d~d t .heir .full 

share in developing the culture and science of the country. 50 per cent 

of a;ll ag~iCl,lltural speci~lists in the S~viet Union ~ere wo~en and ther'e wer e . . ' : . . . . . , . 

400, 000 women en~ineer~, over one m~~ion women teachers, 970,000 women workers · 

in the h~alth service.s and 270,000 l'Tomen doctors • . 

There ~ere 2,500,ooq women students in the. higher educational institutions . 

The Soviet Union aiso had a v~st network of se~o~darY a~d technical schools~ ... 
and. women made up 53 per cent of t he pupil s attending them. The Sovi et Union · 

. ' .. . . . 
Government had spent 2~ ,800 million roubles on education between .l~45 and 

1950. During the past twenty 1ears the number of secondary schools had • 

increased four~fold . .. At the end of 1950 there had been 1,600,000 teachers 
' ' 

in the e.l~entary, sec.ondary and technical schoo.l s , .of whom 945, 099 had been 

women. There. were 220,o0o .secondary. schools with 30,000,000 pupils . 

Education had. also been developed. to a tremendous extent in such outlying 

Republics as Uzbekis:tan and Kazakh~tan. The Russian Sovi et ·.Fed~r~l .·Soci.alist 

Republic alone had over 16,590 kindergartens. 
. . 

The pioneer camps and sanatoria. 
. . 

had accommodation for 5 million children, and educati~n was directed to ensur ing 

the fullest d·evelopment of the· child, who was taught to work for peace and for 

international understanding. 

Finally, she would reiterate that the problem of education of women must 

be viewed . in the light of the cultural ~evelopment of the individual countries. 

It was for the Commi ssion to appreciate the situation correctly and to draw 

up constructive recommendations. 

Miss TSENG (China) wished to give some information about the 
. . . 

situation in Taiwan, since no reference was made to it in UNEScors report . There 

was no discrimination whatsoever ·against girls o~ women. Some 80 per cent of 
. . 

all children attended school, the numbers ·being equally divided between the 
. ·. ' . . . . . 

· sexes. N~t every ~hild attende.d ~chool. becaus~. there were mountainous and 

remote regions inhabited by' aboriginal tr~bcs , for whom it would be possible to 

make provision. only . gr~dually • . . ·The Qo.yernnent had a si~'..:year prog~·~e .of 
. ~ . . . . . . 

compulsory free .eduqation. Unfortun~tely, owing to the .shortage of schools, . . . .. . .. . . 

only 10. per cent of the elem.entary s~hool p~·p.iis ' ~t·. prasant 'went on to secondary. 
. .. . . ~ . . . : . 



E/CN . 6/SR.l09 
page 10. 

schools . Altogether there were 121 secondary schools, and two junior training 

colleges . The University of Formosa had 3,000 student·s, of.'whom. one- sixth 

were girls. F~ee tuition at government · expense was given in a te~chers 1 

college attended·by 2,000 students, · one third of whom were women. · Taiwan 

had the following technical .t .raining institutions: . ·46 agricultural,, l S c011liller­

cial, 25 engineering, 4· teactiing domestic economy) 3 dealing with fishe~ and 

· 1 medical and 1 midwifery college. It went withottt saying that the midwifery 

school was attended by women alone, and that the· fi~heries institute was 
• 

attended exclusively by male pupils, but she must insist on the fact that there 
' . 

was no discrimination . Although at present there were more men students than 

women in the higher. educational institutions, the situation would no ·doubt im­

prove with time as· more schools 'were built. . l'ien · a.~-:.d l·omen ·teachers rfilceived 

the same pay and had identical rights to pensions and various amenities. 
' 

Mrs• NOVIKOVA (Byelorussian Soviet ~ocialist Re~ublic) agreed with the 

Soviet ·Union representative that the report s~bmitted by UN~SCO clearly showed 
. . 

that the ·situation was unsatisfactory in many countries, and that measures 

should be taken to remove discriminato-ry · education barriers against. women . She 

supported those who had expressed the lriew that'· the· Con;inissioll: had not really 

·gone into the substance of the matt-er, but· had ·allot'led : UN~SCO to · proceed along 
. . 

its own lines·. It w·as a well:...known fact· that the situation was catastrophic 

in the Non- Self --Governing · Territories. But the circumstances .of. the coloured 

' population of the United States of America were hot· much betten .thart ·those of 

Africans in Togoland or the Cameroons. ·According to official figures, there 

had been ten times more illiterate negroes than whites in· the Uriited ·states of 

America ·in 1950-51. In North Carolina, whi-ch had· ·the ~eputation of· being an 
11 advanced 11 State, 38 million dollars a year· were spent on ·schools for negroes, 

and 225 million dollars on schools for the rest of th·e p'opulation·; : the ·~dtication 
of a negro child cost· 3 dollars .'a·· year as compared ~ith 114 dolla:rs for· that 

of a white child. Negroes were segregated in ·schodls a'nd higher educational 

rnstituti~ns. · As ·r~cently as March~ 1952, .a youn~ negro teacher. named ·Dorothy 

Brown had been refused a .job a~ a teacher. in NeJ York State ~n racial grounds . 

. The Soyiet Uriion· representative had desbrib~d the ·remarkable edu~~t.ional 
development in her country .• T.he same process was· in. cou~se. in .the Byelorussian 



.E/CN. 6/SR .109 
page -11 

Soviet Socialist Republic, which had a compulsory . seven~year pro~ramme of 

schooling. · Libraries, .laboratories_ and school buildings were plentiful; art, 

literature and the ·sciences flourished. There were a great number of pioneer 

~amps , centres for nature study, g~asia, sports grounds and puppe~ ~heatres . 
Literature for children was plentiful. The . educational presses in the Soviet 

Union had publi~hed 430 million books between 1945 and 1950: Every year, 

250 ,000 children visited the Len~ Children's Library. In 1951, 5,900 million 
roubles had been spent on education. in the Byelorussian Soviet Socialist 

Republic , which had 250,000 teachers in its elementary and secondary schools. . . .. . 

~ the Republica ot central Asia. 180 women were min~atere or ~eputr 

ministers . Uzbekistan had 1,500 women teachers and a great_ many women doctors 

and scientists. · Before. the first world war the -populatic;m of that region had 

been absolutely i~literat~. Today, Uzbekistan could boast of a famous woman 

heart specialist, well-~own for her scientific publications; of ~ highly 

distinguished woman ·lawyer, ·and of an outstanding philologist; who ·was at present 

engaged in compiling ~ Uzbekist·an grammar . Five Uzbekistani actresses had 

received awards for their fine work in the· theatre. 

There were more than 24,000 teachers in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The · 

teachers' training institute -had 330 wom~n graduates, of whom 21 had obtained 

doctorates in .science . 284 lvomen scienti~ts were · ~orking in the Kazakhstan , 

Academy- of Science. Equally r~arkable f acts and figu~es could be quoted for 

the other eastern &epublics. · 

_.· 

Before concluding, she would like to refer t o the United States representative •s 

.stateme~t that the children of the :Soviet Union were being educated on ·communist . 

lines. The truth was that they were brought up in the light of the great 

humanitarian principles of dignity and respect and friendship for all peoples·, 
~ . . . 

including the United States of America. There was no trace of the propagation 

of racial hatred in any books or toys used by the children of the Soviet Union. 

No teacher or educator ever incited a ·child to· hate any f oreign country. On 

the contrary, ·. the . educational system of the Soviet Union was founded on 

internationalism. She feared that some representatives were, perhaps not well 

enough acquainted 1iith conditions obtaining in the Soviet Union, where the qhildren 

of a hundred different nationalities w~re brought up together in the ideal of 

friendship. ·. 



E/ CN. 6/ SR-.109 
page 12 

·- -
· · Finally, she would qeny any suggestion thnt the ·young people of her 

~ ; , • ,, ' I ' 

country were "segregated o·r.- ~able to get. to knO\v the youth of' other count~ie·s. 
That· was :not so·. The .!oung citizens of the s<?~iet Unio~ had partl~ipat-~d .:i~ -
ali' the big post-war yo~th congresses, at whi~h th~y had met boys and girls 

. . 
from France~ the ~nited Kingdom and the United States of America,. sharing -with . . :. 

them their experiences and a desire for peace. 
.. 

It was, as the Soviet Union representative had already pointed out, essential 

that the situation of individual countries be judged objecti~ely in order·\that 

effective measures might be -taken to'raise the level of culture for all 

citizen~ ever~hei·e, and for ..;.omen first and foremost. In many regions . . . . 

women -~ere · ~till held down, and w~re still unable to play any active· part in their 

country's life. They must be taught to understand what they should d~and 

from their gove~.ents, and should be encouraged to abandon their present 

apathetic attitude for one of constructive. activity • . . 

· Miss LUTZ (Brazil) paid a tribute to the representative of UNESCO, 

who, sha felt, was· a living proof of the fact that women from co~tries in which . - . 
their opportunities had hitherto been slight could Successfully catch up with 

their sisters in the more developed countries, and also of the fact that women 

had proved as capable as men in educational work. 

She did ·not intend to make a lengthy statement on education and educational 
! 

facilities in Brazil, for that was ·scarcely a matter to be developed in the 

Commission. She would mer~ly state that in the primary and seco~dary schools 

of Brazil no distinction was made between boys and girls. In· the field of 

highe: education, two types of institution existed: . first, the -official 

universities which a.ny ·young ni.an or women could enter, provided that he or she 

not only passed the entrance _examination but was also among those:with the 

highest marks; sec~ndly, pri~ate institutions ~0~ hig~er' -education f_or whic~ a fee. 

was cha~ged, and which those with lower marks but successful in fe·d~r~ or State . 

~nive~sity ex~ina~ions 'could enter. 

She wo~ld, however,' ·like to make ·a few suggestions."_ In ·reports indic_ating 

the numbers of children in primary. schools it ~ould. be we.li, iii. ord-er t:6 ''m~k~ . 
such reports as .exact as p~ssible, to. indic~t~ . the pro portio~: of . bo~s ~d . ~i;ls 

'.. : l ~ • ' 



- E/CN.6/SR.l09 
page 13 · 

of primary school age and at what age attend~cc a~ pr~ary -schools ended. · 

. Again, the geographical factors in the pr oblem ·must be. taken into account. 

Adverse figures had been quoted in the · course of the .. discussion in respeet . or· 
···=· ·· 

education in the Belgi~n Congo . It must be remembered, hoi'Jev~r, that:· in 

sometropical countrie~ , as for example in certain African ~~~tries and in some 

remote areas in Brazil which comprised 44 per c~nt of the territor.y of South 

America, and whe~e distances were immense and communications relatively new, 

the percentage of illiteracy was partly.due to difficulties of a technical . 

nature. . Admittedly, travel· conditions were improv?-ng with the _ incr~asi.ng 

use of aircraft~ but. schoolteachers coul~ not be transported from one distant 

point to another in such areas to ·. ·provide education for the children of the .. . .. 
frequently small nucl~i of population. She ~ad been somewhat disappointed 

that UN~CO had net t aken more interest in the use of r adio and television· 

in education on a la.~ge scale • To her mind, such media could gr eatly help 
. . . . . 

to r educe .. illlteracY: .throughout the \'lorld, particularly if inexpensj.ve sets · 
. . 

could be made available . _. One of the poi~ts in t he conclusions _of UNZSCO's 

report (E/CN.6/i9i, page _. 10) rel~ted 'to the developnent of progr~~s ·. 

designed to e·duc~t~ ~omen for respan::ibie national and world. citizensl)ip. To 
. ., . . • 

her mind, however, it :was as essential to concentrate on the political . . 
. . 

education of inen as' on that of women. True,' education of women meant to some 

extent the education of the next generation of men, but it was· clear, and she 

gave several ~llustrations to support her cont~ntion , that in the matter of 

politics men frequently .required to be r e- educat ed. She would therefore urge 

UNESCO to extend to men as well the· work it cont~mp~ated under point ' J of its 

conclusions . · ·· · 

Begum Fida HASSAN (Pakistan)· ~~.in. that ·she had listened wit.h very 

gr eat int~rest t o th~ state~ent made by the ~~pr~sentative' of UNEsCO, the more 

particularly as eciuc~tio~ was a matter of vital importance for Pakistan . . . . . 
Since 

the achievement of its independence; :Pakistan had devoted very considerable 
.. - .... . 

attention t o that problem, but unfortunately it had had to face many other and · 

more serious problems, such as that of .the r efug0os and that of the dispute 

over Kashmir . , It was good to read all that the r eport said about the development 
' . 

of education and to note the various resolutions and r ecommendations adopted, but 



;. 
'! E/CN. 6/SR.·l09 

page 14 

'• 

she was impatient, perhaps because of the urgency of her country's need, to see 
•• I ' 

speedier implementation of reports, ~ecommendations .and resolutions. In 

Pakistan, only 3 per cent of women were literate, .as against ·15 per cent of the 

men. The difference was attributable to various causes, put she could state 

that the sexes now had equal educational opportunities. While much was being 
. . ' . . . 

done in the field of education, there was still a great nee~ for more school . . 
buildings, books and, above all,. teachers. In addition to the measures being 

adopted by the Government, much was being done by priva~e effort . A women's 

o~ganization called the All-Pakis~an Women's Association was doing what it 

could to increase literacy among the adult and child population. It ran a 

number of schools .and centres f~r children on a voluntary basis, and some of its 
. .... 

members received poorer children in their homes in order to educate them. 

Miss SuTHERLAND (Unit~d· ·ungdom) ·considered UNESCO• s ~eporl to be a 
' . . . . 

useful document; and it had been well .supplemented by the representa~ive of 

UNESCO.in her oral statement. 

With reference to what had been said about conditions of Non-Self-Governing . .. . . 

Territories, she pointed out th~t inf~rmation published by the ~n~ted Natio~s . . . . 

. showed that the . prohlems o.f Non:-Self-Governing Territories wer~ common to . . . . . . . .. 

other couhtrios . in the areas in which they were located, an~ that sovereign: 

States in those areas suffered just as much and in the _same way. The 

educational situation in-those. areas reflected their economic ~verty~ The 

only hop~ .of. raising th~ le~el. of . education in und~r-developed countries to 

something approa~hing the le~el ' of the mo~e highly iz:Idu~trialized areas of the 
. . .. . . . . . . . ' . ' . . . . 

world was through the_development of their economic resources. Much that 
. . . . . . ~ . . . ~ . . . .. . . : . . . . . 

was being done under such schemes as the programmes of technical assistance 

and the Colombo Plan, although primarily concerned with . economic development, 

also provided a basis for raising the level of education. 

lh her view, therefo.re, instead of concentrating on critic ism, menbers of the . . . 

Commissio~ would be well advised to express appreciation. of th~ .work tha~ was 

· being done . by many ~overnments to·raise the level ~f education in their 

countries, not · only as a means of developing their economies, but. also from the 

point of view that education was a basic righ~ of every human: being. 

I • 



E/CN.6/SR.l09 
· page 15 

I ' 

, The Polish representative had ·criticized a remark made by a Latin-~~rican 

Minister of Education, quoted in the report of the Sub-Committee on Education . 

in Non-Self-Governing Te.rritories. But what the Minister had said was amply · 

borne out by. experien~e in the Soviet Union. While it . had been decreed after · 

the Revolution of 1917 that education should ~e. universal and free for all, 

~t~lin himself had found it necessary at the 16th Party cOngress in 1930 to 

say that . t~e time had ' come to set about o~ganizing universal obligator.y elementary . 
. . 

education. Thus; t~e objective ha·d not be.en reached .by 1930. It ·was also 

clear that even the four-year and seven-year s.chool plans had · been far frOm . 

accomplished, even at the beginning of the fourth FiYe-year Plan, because the 

law relating to that plan had laid down that universal compulsory education. 

was to be extended to all children, both in town and country; and later, in 

January, 1949, the Soviet Literary Gazette had said that the seven-year 
\ . . . . . . 

school plan had now been largely achieved. If such .wa~ the experience in an 

economically strong country, there wer~ surely no grounds for criticism o£ the 

Latin-American Minister who had refused to deceive his. people about the 

prospe.cts of rapidly improving educational condi~ions in his own country. 

Restrictions on secondary education f~cilities for girls in the United 

Kingdom had n.lso been mentioned·. The position was that primary and 

s~condary education was compulsory for all children, and it was ~nly when there 

were -more boys than girls in a particular district that the number of boys in 

secondary schools .was higher than the number of girls. Th~re was a ten-years' 

period ·of··coinpulsory education, the primary period lasting up ~o about 12 years'• 

of age, and the secondary period from 12 to 15 with a variety of secondary 

education courses. There was' no discrimination against girls in higher 

secondary schools and universities, although only one third of students in 

· institutions of · higher education were women. 

The Soviet ' Union arid Byelorussian representatives had referred to the 

emphasis on the spirit of. iriternationalism in education in the Soviet Union. It 

should be noted, however, .that in a text book entitled Pedagogia published in 

1946 for use in teachers training colleges, it was stated that the pupils of 

the Soviet school must realize that.Soviet patriotism was saturated with an 
I 

irreconcilable hatred of the enemies of the socialist society. That hatred 



E/CN:6/SR.l09 
page 16 

must cover a pretty wide field, since practically all .. cotintri~s outside the 

circle of Soviet Union influence ·werz described by ·th·e Soviet· Union authorities 

as enemies. All the instruction in that t ext book was based , ~n the prin~iple 
that the teaching of almost every subject s hould be relat~d t;·o· the mastery of 

military technique and to the perfection of ·th~ military .arts~ It might not 

be out of place for the Soviet Union representative to indUlge in a little self­

criticism. 

Again, it had been ordained in 1940 that fc~s should be ·ch.arged in all 

Soviet Uni~n s~condary school s, with the exception of milit~ry a~d air tr~i~ing 
schools. . L~ter still, co- education had been abolishe~~ o~~ ~f the · ~as~n~ , .. · .. 

given being the difficulty of training girls in practical activities and. milit~ry 

matters. Thus , education in the Soviet Union ·had been subordinated to 

military development long before the initiation of rearmament programmes ·in the 

west . 

The classic Marxist criticism of education in capitalist States was that 
. . 

it was provided only to the extent required to make children into useful 

instruments of production . But leading Soviet Union writers; am~~ them+e~in 
himself,, had insisted that education was a first . condition for raising the 

productivity of labour, and that its mairi function was to ensure ef'ficient 

production techniques . 

The· Commission should regard general education not only as an· ·it1dis.pensable 

trainir:tg for work, but also as ~ basic h~an right that would ena.ble. the ­

individual to make the most of his capacities and to become a good citizen of the 

community to which he belonged. 

tnJiSCO 's r eport should convince the Commission that U~SCO laid stress on 

the principle of sex equality in the field of education. She would like to see 

progress reports submitted on the plans that UNi SCO had already dra~ up. · \vhile 

it was ·natural .to be imp~tient for results, what was being achieved should 

not be under-estimat~d , particularly in the difficult times through which all 

the peoples of the· worl~ _wer_e passing and when political tensio~ --w~s ~ausing 

so much desirable social development to be postponed. · 

She agreed with some of the comments of the'Bra~ilian r.epres~~tati~e on 



E/CN.6/SR.l09 
page 17 

the third conclusion in U~ESCO's report. · Neverthele~s, there was one argument 

~n 'fayour_ of specific reference to the political education of women. · In 

many countrie_s women were at the beginning of their emancipation, and if 

spee~y progress in the fiel~ of civic educ~tion was to be achieved, the appraach 

should ·.be made through ,programmes that were related to t heir own experience and 

to th~ common interests of woman in the community. That applied to developed 

and under-developed countries alike . 

·She th~ught .that the conclusi ons r eached by··the Working Party for 

Planning Studie_s on the Access of t·romen t o Education; .which ·had met in Paris 

in December 1951, were somewhat too rigid~ She was not -convin~ed that it 

could be laid down as .a desideratum that .. the curriculum f9r secondary schools 

should_ be absolutely the same f~r both sexes. . After all, certain educationSJ. 

probl~ms had not yet been finally settled by the ,educationists; for example, . 
the pace of .mental development. in the adolescent ·boy and ·iri the · adolescent girl 

r espectively. What should be .provided was a fairly wide range ~f choice for 

both -sexes so a~ to provide for all aptitudes. and to ensure that t~e facilities 

avail able to girls did not restrict their opportunities when it came to · 

choosing a career. 

She commended the work of UNESCO and its whole- hearted co- operation with 

t~1~ Commission, and emphasized ~hat UNESCO; and not the Commission, was the body 

to take action in the field of · educ~tion . 

Mrs . GOLI~l-1AN (United States of America) spoke of the continuing 

r esponsibilit.ies of UNESCO in the field of education, and urged maximum co­

ordination of effort between the specialized agencies. 

As to the Polish r epresentati ve.' s remark~ regarding the ·~ituation in Non­

Self-Gov'erning.·Territories , she would ·draw particular attention to the report 

of the Sub- Committee on Education in ·Non-Self-Governing Territories, wh.ere the 

educational -work being done . in Hawaii and other territories was fully set ou~. 

She recalled how Mrs . Boos~velt had r ecently had occasion to report that 

ma.ny women were r eceiving· :education in Pakistan, that the demand for wom~n 

doctors in that country was high, and that Pakistani women were doing very good 

work in teaching refugee children. 



·. E/CN.6/Stt.l09 
page 18 

rn·answer to -a ch?llenga that had been thrown out in the oourse of 

discussions, she stated that in the United States of America in 1950, 97.9 per cent 

of the population of school age had attended school; · 1 in 3 of the 18-19 age · 

group·had attended school; and 1 in 8 of the ~0-24 age group had attended 

a~vanced - professional schools. The percentage of girls in kindergarten and 
. I 

elementary schools waa .48, in secondary schools 50, and iti institut.ions for hiSher 

education 30.3 

As to the education of the negroes, great progre~s had been made since 

their emancipation. Illiteracy amo~g them had fallen f.rom _44 per cent in 1900 

to 6 per cent \oday, and it would be noted that literacy standards in-the United 

States of America were high. In 1900, 1 in 5 negroes of school age had 

attended school whereas in 1950 the proportion had .been 9 out of 10, and, except 

in the southern State~, white and negro children attended· school together. 

She quoted further figures and referred to several all-negro colleges established 

in different States -of the Union, to emphasize that negroes ·were making great. 

·progress iri the field of education and that the whites strongly supported th~t 

development. 

The Soviet Union representative'had mentioned the United States budget. 

It should be noted that in the Sovi~t Union, budget appropriations for education 

included very large funds that were devoted to straight political propaganda. 

Again, the Federal budge¥ of the United States of America covered only 
. . . " 

educational cba~ges directly borne by the Federal goyernment, the cost of 

maintaining local schools and institutions being_ borne by ·State and local 

budgets. 

Further; ·the Soviet Union representative- had overlooked the fact that in 

1946 the Soviet Union had devoted twic~ as large a share of its national income · 

to military expenditure as had the United States or· America, and that the 

proportion for the· years 1947 to.l950 was more than half as high again. It 

would also be noted that the appropriation of 41,500,000,000 dollars for 

armaments ~n the United ~tates budget for 1952 reptesented ~ per cent of the 

national--income; whereas the Soviet Union appropri~tion for armaments in the 

same year represented 45 per cent of the national income of that country. 



E/CN.6/SR.l09 
pa,q:e 19 

The Byelorussian representative had emp~asizeq that the children .of he~ 
I 

·country were taught to understand how American children lived. She herself had 
' . . 

seen some dozen· books in a school library .in Kassachusetts, some of them well . . 
illustrated and all written by reputable authorities on Russian life, and she , 

would be glad to lmow if similar literature ohAmerican life was available to 

Russian children. 

Soviet Union sources revealed that the seven-year school plan in the 

Soviet Union appeared to have yielded but limited results; that was certainly 

true of 1949 and 1950. However, she would welcome further information on the 

s~bject. 

Finally~ while stressing th~ usefulness of .UN~SC0 1 s report, she urged that. 

the Commission should concentrate on all aspects. of education for women as 

envisaged by the United Nations. 

The meeting· rose at 1.20 p~~· 


